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February 10, 2025 
  
Senator Anne Beebe-Center, Chair 
Representative Tavis Hasenfus, Chair 
Committee on Criminal Justice and Public Safety  
5 State House Station, Room 436 
Augusta, ME 04333 
   
RE: LD 96: An Act to Amend the Motor Vehicles and Traffic Law Governing 
Mandatory Driver's License Suspension for Refusing Testing for Drugs or a 
Combination of Drugs and Alcohol 
 
Dear Senator Beebe-Center, Representative Hasenfus, and Members of the 
Committee on Criminal Justice and Public Safety: 
 
MACDL opposes LD 96. 
 
The Maine Bureau of Highway Safety (MBHS) and Maine Criminal Justice Academy 
(MCJA) oversee Maine’s Drug Recognition Expert (DRE) program. “Drug 
Recognition Expert,” State of Maine Department of Public Safety, 
https://www.maine.gov/dps/bhs/law-enforcement/drug-recognition-expert (last visited 
Feb. 5., 2025). According to MBHS’s website, the DRE program was approved by the 
Association of Chiefs of Police in 1995. Forty-seven states, the District of Columbia, 
and three branches of the military participate in the DRE program. MBHS reports that 
Maine has approximately 100 active DREs and 17 DRE instructors state-wide.  
 
DREs are required to undergo a 7-day training course and then maintain 
recertification every 2 years through additional training and a required number of 
DRE investigations. The 7-day training includes training on administration of a series 
of tests. Some of those tests are documented on the State of Maine Drug Influence 
Evaluation sheet attached hereto. This training is highly specialized and requires 
administration of tests and understanding of how results from those tests may or may 
not be indicative of impairment by a variety of drugs, including many lawfully 
prescribed medications taken by thousands of Mainers every day.  
 
LD 96 seeks to do away with the DRE system used by Maine and many others states 
for years and allows any law enforcement officer—without this specialized 
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training—to act as DRE. LD 96 would impose a requirement to submit to blood or 
urine testing when an untrained law enforcement officer has probable cause to 
believe someone is under the influence of a drug or drugs. LD 96 rejects the years of 
training the National Traffic Highway Safety Administration (NTSHA), MBHS, 
MCJA, and their nationwide counterparts have undertaken in creating and 
implementing the drug recognition expert program. 
 
LD 96 moreover seeks to impose a mandatory and immediate license suspension—
without the benefit of due process and an administrative hearing prior to 
suspension—on any person who refuses to submit to a blood or urine test when an 
untrained law enforcement officer has ordered them to submit to blood or urine 
testing. A license suspension is one of the most severe punishments imposed as part 
of an OUI case and the immediate imposition of such a suspension without 
specialized training supporting the suspension is unfair to Maine motorists. Such a 
suspension is also contrary to our existing suspension system for OUIs arising from 
alcohol consumption. In those cases, law enforcement officers are required to 
undergo specialized NTSHA training to identify impairment through administration 
of standardized field sobriety testing. If specialized training is needed for identifying 
impairment by alcohol, then it certainly is needed for identifying impairment from 
illegal drugs and lawfully prescribed medications.      

  
It is also important to note that rejecting LD 96 does not prohibit the State from 
presenting evidence of alleged impairment through non-DRE law enforcement at any 
trial. In State v. Atkins, the Law Court permitted law enforcement to testify at trial 
about observations of possible impairment by drugs without this training so long as 
the State was not offering the testimony as expert testimony,129 A.3d 952 (2015). 
Instead, this is a question about making sure that the requirement for highly invasive 
blood or urine tests and the immediate 275-day license suspension for failing to 
submit to such tests is based on a trained and experienced judgment.  
 
For these reasons, MACDL opposes LD 96. 

        
Sincerely, 
     

 /s/ Matthew D. Morgan  
Matthew D. Morgan, Esq. 
MACDL President Elect 

 
 










